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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Mermaid Maritime Public Company Limited
Opinion

I have audited the consolidated and separate financial statements of Mermaid Maritime Public Company
Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) and of Mermaid Maritime Public Company Limited
(the “Company”), respectively, which comprise the consolidated and separate statements of financial position -
as at 31 December 2024, the consolidated and separate statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity
and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of material accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In my opinion, the accompanying consolidated and separate financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Group and the Company, respectively, as at 31 December 2024 and their
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting
Standards (“TFRSs™).

Basis for Opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing (“TSAs™). My responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements section of my report. I am independent of the Group and the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants including Independence Standards issued
by the Federation of Accounting Professions (“Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants™) that is relevant
to my audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, and I have fulfilled my other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants. I believe that the audit
evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, were of most significance in my audit
of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in

the context of my audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements as a whole, and in forming my
opinion thereon, and I do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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KPMG

The impairment testing of property, plant and equipment and investments in subsidiaries

Refer to Notes 6 and 7 to the consolidated and separate financial statements.

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in the audit

The Group had several cash-generating units
(“CGUs”) which generated losses from operations
during the year, which management considered to
be an indicator of impairment of those CGUSs’
property, plant and equipment, and the Company’s
investments in those subsidiaries containing those
CGUs as at 31 December 2024.

Therefore, management estimated the recoverable
amounts of those CGUs’ property, plant and
equipment by using the higher of the property,
plant and equipment’s estimated value-in-use and
fair value less costs to sell. For the recoverable
amounts of those investments in subsidiaries,
management estimated their enterprise values.

Management used the discounted cash flow
forecast (“DCF”) method to estimate value-in-use
and enterprise value. In using the DCF method,
there are key assumptions used to estimate future
cash flows, which contain inherent uncertainty.
Therefore, this is a key area of judgment on which
my audit was focused.

My audit procedures included:

e making inquiries of management and obtaining
related documents to understand the process by
which management has derived its value-in-
use and enterprise value estimates;

e comparing forecast revenues to those achieved
in prior periods;

e cevaluating the DCF methodology and key
assumptions applied in the DCF model;

e performing sensitivity tests by varying key
assumptions;

e assessing the competency and independence of
management’s fair value less costs to sell
valuation expert;

e using the work of external experts engaged by
KPMG in evaluating methodologies and key
assumptions used in assessing the fair value of
assets; and

e considering the adequacy of the Group’s
disclosures in accordance with the relevant
Thai Financial Reporting Standards.

Measurement of expected credit losses on amount due from related parties and loans to related parties

Refer to Notes 3 and 12 to the separate financial statements.

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in the audit

The Company measured expected credit losses on
amount due from related parties and loans to related
parties are based on management’s estimate of
the lifetime expected credit loss, which involves
significant management judgement, including the
estimates of probability of default, loss given
default, discount rate, and adjustments for forward
looking information, and the result might have had
a significant impact to the separate financial
statements.

I identified the measurement of expected credit
losses as a key audit matter because amount due
from related parties and loans to related parties are
material to the Company and the recognition of
expected credit loss requires the exercise of
significant management judgement.

My audit procedures included:

e obtaining an understanding of and evaluating
the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over the
measurement of expected credit losses and
estimation of allowance for expected credit
losses;

e assessing overall data and assumptions used in
management estimation whether the assumptions
used in making the accounting estimate are
reasonable;

e testing the calculation of expected credit losses
on amount due from related parties and loans
to related parties and evaluating the accuracy
of their balances; and

e considering the adequacy of disclosures in
accordance with Thai Financial Reporting
Standards.
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Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated and separate financial statements and my
auditor’s report thereon. The annual report is expected to be made available to me after the date of this auditor’s
report.

My opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does not cover the other information and I
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, my responsibility is to read
the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated and separate financial statements or my knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When I read the annual report, if I conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, I am required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance and request that the correction be made.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and separate financial
statements in accordance with TFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Group and the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s and the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with TSAs will always detect a material misstatement when )
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated and separate financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with TSAs, I exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s and the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated and separate financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated and separate financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. I am responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. I remain solely responsible for my audit
opinion.

I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
I identify during my audit.

I also provide those charged with governance with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate -
threats or safeguards applied.

‘From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, I determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. I describe these matters in my auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, I determine that a
matter should not be communicated in my report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

R, £

(Pornthip Rimdusit)
Certified Public Accountant
Registration No. 5565

KPMG Phoomchai Audit Ltd.
Bangkok
27 February 2025



Mermaid Maritime Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Statement of financial position

Assets Note
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other accounts receivable 3,4
Short-term loans to related parties 3
Supplies and spare parts

Non-current assets classified as held for sale 7

Total current assets

Non-current assets
Restricted deposit at financial institution
Investment in associate

Investment in joint ventures

w U U

Other non-current receivable to joint venture
Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment 7
Right-of-use assets
Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets 11
Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

Total assets

Consolidated financial statements

31 December

31 December

2024 2023 2024 2023
(in thousand US Dollar) (in thousand Baht)

22,941 30,317 779,716 1,037,548
181,843 110,597 6,180,462 3,784,995
4,250 3,250 144,449 111,226
317 944 10,774 32,307
- 752 - 25,736
209,351 145,860 7,115,401 4,991,812
3,331 15,020 113,214 514,034
22,356 22,362 759,833 765,301
4,251 6,259 144,483 214,204
16,000 16,000 543,806 547,573
319 362 10,842 12,389
147,589 129,406 5,016,240 4,428,700
11,700 20,536 397,658 702,810
22 35 748 1,198
709 655 24,098 22,416
84 84 2,855 2,875
206,361 210,719 7,013,777 7,211,500
415,712 356,579 14,129,178 12,203,312

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Mermaid Maritime Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Statement of financial position

Consolidated financial statements

31 December 31 December

Liabilities and equity Note 2024 2023 2024 2023
(in thousand US Dollar) (in thousand Baht)

Current liabilities
Trade and other accounts payable 3 109,684 77,797 3,727,927 2,662,469
Short-term borrowings from parent company 3,8 11,500 11,500 390,861 393,568
Short-term borrowing from financial institution 8 1,559 3,064 52,987 104,860
Current portion of long-term borrowings

from parent company 3,8 63,500 17,500 2,158,232 598,908
Current portion of long-term borrowings

from financial institutions 8 9,511 17,429 323,259 596,478
Current portion of lease liabilities 10,061 9,211 341,952 315,231
Current income tax payable 2,602 2,095 88,437 71,698
Total current liabilities 208,417 138,596 7,083,655 4,743,212
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings from parent company 38 5,500 25,000 186,933 855,583
Long-term borrowings from financial

institutions 8 10,714 6,767 364,146 231,589
Lease liabilities 2,680 12,353 91,088 422,760
Deferred tax liabilities 11 - 1 - 34
Non-current provisions for employee benefits 3,601 3,259 122,390 111,534
Total non-current liabilities 22,495 47,380 764,557 1,621,500
Total liabilities 230,912 185,976 7,848,212 6,364,712

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Mermaid Maritime Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Statement of financial position

Liabilities and equity

Equity
Share capital:
Authorized share capital
(1,416,700,697 ordinary shares,
par value at Baht 1 per share)
Issued and paid share capital
(1,413,328,857 ordinary shares,
par value at Baht 1 per share)
Share premium on ordinary shares
Deficit
Other components of equity
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests
Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

Consolidated financial statements

31 December

31 December

2024 2023 2024 2023
(in thousand US Dollar) (in thousand Baht)
- - 1,416,701 1,416,701
47,322 47,322 1,413,329 1,413,329
343,536 343,536 12,271,678 12,271,678
(203,380) (217,180)  (8,230,882)  (8,709,056)
(3,392) (3,392) 805,717 855,528
184,086 170,286 6,259,842 5,831,479
714 317 21,124 7,121
184,800 170,603 6,280,966 5,838,600
415,712 356,579 14,129,178 12,203,312
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Mermaid Maritime Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Statement of financial position

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Other accounts receivable
Short-term loans to related parties

Total current assets

Non-current assets

Investment in associate
Investment in joint venture
Investment in subsidiaries
Other non-current receivable to related party
Long-term loan to related party
Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

Total assets

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

Note

T T N R

Separate financial statements

31 December

31 December

2024 2023 2024 2023
(in thousand US Dollar) (in thousand Baht)

4,177 2,670 141,967 91,376
1,373 846 46,666 28,953
8,450 7,450 287,198 254,964
14,000 10,966 475,831 375,293
22,507 22,507 764,966 770,264
213 213 7,239 7,290
55,370 55,370 1,881,910 1,894,944
46,707 45,332 1,587,473 1,551,411
69,184 46,510 2,351,419 1,591,726
1,017 1,177 34,566 40,281
129 133 4,384 4,552
739 449 25,117 15,366
14 19 476 650
85 71 2,889 2,430
46 48 1,563 1,643
196,011 171,829 6,662,002 5,880,557
210,011 182,795 7,137,833 6,255,850
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Mermaid Maritime Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Statement of financial position

Liabilities and equity

Current liabilities

Other accounts payable

Short-term borrowing from parent company

Current portion of long-term borrowings
from parent company

Current portion of lease liabilities

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Long-term borrowings from parent company
Lease liabilities

Non-current provisions for employee benefits

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Equity
Share capital:
Authorized share capital
(1,416,700,697 ordinary shares,
par value at Baht 1 per share)
Issued and paid share capital
(1,413,328,857 ordinary shares,
par value at Baht 1 per share)
Share premium on ordinary shares
Deficit
Other components of equity
Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

Note

3,8

3,8

3,8

Separate financial statements

31 December

31 December

2024 2023 2024 2023
(in thousand US Dollar) (in thousand Baht)
5,012 1,620 170,348 55,442
11,500 11,500 390,861 393,568
63,500 17,500 2,158,232 598,908
125 33 4,248 1,129
80,137 30,653 2,723,689 1,049,047
5,500 25,000 186,933 855,583
645 406 21,922 13,895
393 403 13,357 13,792
6,538 25,809 222,212 883,270
86,675 56,462 2,945,901 1,932,317
- - 1,416,701 1,416,701
47,322 47,322 1,413,329 1,413,329
343,536 343,536 12,271,678 12,271,678
(267,550) (264,553)  (9,858,987)  (9,750,376)
28 28 365,912 388,902
123,336 126,333 4,191,932 4,323,533
210,011 182,795 7,137,833 6,255,850
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Mermaid Maritime Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Statement of comprehensive income

Consolidated financial statements

Year ended 31 December Year ended 31 December
Note 2024 2023 2024 2023
(in thousand US Dollar) (in thousand Baht)

Income
Revenue from rendering of services 39 513,342 275,402 18,148,786 9,628,569
Interest income 294 187 10,444 6,539
Reversal of impairment loss on property, plant

and equipment 7 9,913 256 337,034 9,127
Other income 3 1,721 1,748 60,605 60,568
Total income 525,270 277,593 18,556,869 9,704,803
Expenses
Costs of rendering of services 3,10 475,188 242,736 16,799,369 8,481,250
Administrative expenses 3,10 25,381 20,994 893,600 730,661
Net loss on foreign exchange 1,214 903 42,911 32,321
Finance costs 3 8,691 5,643 306,994 196,679
Total expenses 510,474 270,276 18,042,874 9,440,911
Share of profit of joint ventures and

associate accounted for using equity method 5 1,619 3,867 56,122 135,876
Profit before income tax expense 16,415 11,184 570,117 399,768
Tax expense 11 2,243 1,520 78,810 53,878
Profit for the year 14,172 9,664 491,307 345,890
Other comprehensive income (expense)
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to

profit or loss
Translation adjustments - - (49,811) (69,725)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to

profit or loss
Gain (loss) on remeasurements of defined

benefit plans 25 (€)) 870 (35)
Other comprehensive income (expense)

for the year, net of tax 25 (1) (48,941) (69,760)
Total comprehensive income for the year 14,197 9,663 442,366 276,130

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Mermaid Maritime Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Statement of comprehensive income

Consolidated financial statements

Year ended 31 December Year ended 31 December
2024 2023 2024 2023
(in thousand US Dollar) (in thousand Baht)
Profit attributable to:
Owners of parent 13,776 9,593 477,339 343,380
Non-controlling interests 396 71 13,968 2,510
14,172 9,664 491,307 345,890
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of parent 13,800 9,592 428,363 273,620
Non-controlling interests 397 7l 14,003 2,510
14,197 9,663 442,366 276,130
(in US Dollar) (in Baht)
Basic earnings per share 0.0097 0.0068 0.3377 0.2430

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Mermaid Maritime Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Statement of comprehensive income

Income

Management fee income
Dividend income

Interest income

Net gain on foreign exchange
Other income

Total income

Expenses
Administrative expenses
Finance costs

Total expenses

Loss before income tax expense

Tax income

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive expense

Items that will be reclassified subsequently to

profit or loss

Translation adjustments

Other comprehensive expense

for the year, net of tax
Total comprehensive expense

for the year

Basic losses per share

Note

3,10

Year ended 31 December

Separate financial statements

Year ended 31 December

2024 2023 2024 2023
(in thousand US Dollar) (in thousand Baht)

392 403 13,835 14,025
1,387 - 48,277 -
4,355 1,013 153,521 35,365

384 842 11,009 33,213

334 361 11,798 12,545
6,852 2,619 238,440 95,148
4,211 4,036 148,147 140,618
5,652 1,822 199,397 63,892
9,863 5,858 347,544 204,510
(3,011) (3,239) (109,104) (109,362)

(14) (12) (493) (434)
(2,997) (3,227) (108,611) (108,928)

- - (22,990) (45,441)

- - (22,990) (45,441)

(2,997) (3,227) (131,601) (154,369)
(in US Dollar) (in Baht)
(0.0021) (0.0023) (0.0768) (0.0771)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Mermaid Maritime Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Statement of cash flows

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year
Adjustments to reconcile profit to cash receipts (payments)
Tax expense
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisation
Unrealised loss on exchange
Share of profit of joint ventures and associate
accounted for using equity method, net of tax
Expected credit loss
Reversal of impairment loss on property, plant and equipment
Gain on disposals of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets
Interest income
Provision for employee benefits

Loss from write-off non-refundable withholding tax

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Restricted deposit at financial institutions
Trade and other account receivables
Supplies and spare parts

Trade and other account payables
Translation adjustments

Net cash generated from operations
Provision for employee benefit paid

Taxes paid

Net cash from operating activities

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Consolidated financial statements

Year ended 31 December

Year ended 31 December

2024 2023 2024 2023
(in thousand US Dollar) (in thousand Baht)
14,172 9,664 491,307 345,890
2,243 1,520 78,810 53,878
8,691 5,643 306,994 196,679
30,596 25,053 1,079,066 872,164
468 394 15,556 16,348
(1,619) (3,867) (56,122) (135,876)
889 21 30,163 688
(9,913) (256) (337,034) (9,127)
©6) (12) (214) (428)
(294) (187) (10,444) (6,539)
655 602 23,124 20,861
718 679 25,205 23,553
46,600 39,254 1,646,411 1,378,091
11,689 (6,615) 397,285 (226,387)
(64,477) (43,569)  (2,191,438)  (1,491,075)
627 4 21,310 137
28,704 22,880 975,590 783,028
- - (53.820) (33,356)
23,143 11,954 795,338 410,438
(288) (165) (9,932) (5,731)
(7,210) (1,830) (253,253) (63,939)
15,645 9,959 532,153 340,768




Mermaid Maritime Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Statement of cash flows

Cash flows from investing activities

Increase in short-term loan to related party

Proceeds from short-term loan to related party

Proceeds from sale of assets held for sale

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets

Acquisition of interest in joint venture

Dividend received

Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings from parent company
Repayment of borrowings from parent company
Proceeds from borrowings from financial institutions
Repayment of borrowing from financial institutions
Payment of lease liabilities

Interest paid

Net cash from financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents,
before effect of exchange rates
Effect of exchange rates changes on cash and
cash equivalents
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

Non-cash transactions

Payables for purchase of property, plant and equipment
Lease agreements for purchase of equipment

Dividend receivables from joint venture

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Consolidated financial statements

Year ended 31 December

Year ended 31 December

2024 2023 2024 2023
(in thousand US Dollar) (in thousand Baht)
(2,250) (2,000) (76,473) (68,447)
1,250 - 42,485 -
752 - 25,559 -
6 28 204 958
(29,888) (11,117)  (1,015,830) (380,460)
(750) - (25,491) -
1,387 - 47,141 -
304 198 10,332 6,776
(29,189) (12,891) (992,073) (441,173)
30,000 45,000 1,019,637 1,540,049
(3,500) - (118,958) -
27,873 8,926 947,345 305,477
(33,403) (14,289)  (1,135,298) (489,017)
(10,272) (10,308) (349,124) (352,774)
(3,846) (3,986) (137.917) (139,053)
6,852 25,343 225,685 864,682
(6,692) 22,411 (234,235) 764,277
(684) 105 (23,597) 3,650
(7,376) 22,516 (257,832) 767,927
30,317 7,801 1,037,548 269,621
22,941 30,317 779,716 1,037,548
895 1,212 30,419 41,479
402 445 13,663 15,229
2,996 3,746 101,828 128,200



Mermaid Maritime Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Statement of cash flows

Cash flows from operating activities

Loss for the year

Adjustments to reconcile loss to cash receipts (payments)

Tax income

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation

Unrealised gain on exchange

Dividend income

Interest income

Provision for employee benefits

Loss from write-off non-refundable withholding tax

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Other accounts receivable

Other non-current assets

Other accounts payable

Translation adjustments

Net cash used in operations

Provision for employee benefit paid

Taxes paid

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Increase in short-term loans to related party
Proceeds from short-term loans to related party
Increase in long-term loans to related party
Proceeds from long-term loan to related party
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Dividend received

Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Year ended 31 December

Separate financial statements

Year ended 31 December

2024 2023 2024 2023
(in thousand US Dollar) (in thousand Baht)
(2,997) (3,227) (108,611) (108,928)
(14) (12) (493) (434)
5,652 1,822 199,397 63,892
325 316 11,464 10,988
(666) (1,223) (20,918) (46,681)
(1,387) - (48,277) -
(4,355) (1,013) (153,521) (35,365)
25 48 881 1,671
- 73 - 2,549
(3.417) (3.216) (120,078)  (112,308)
4,443 1;359 151,008 46,510
(1,373) (17,858) (46,665) (611,160)
(308) 304 (10,469) 10,404
- - 4,154 3,764
(655) (19,411) (22,050) (662,790)
(35) 3) (1,190) (107)
(58) (8) (2,011) (280)
(748) (19,422) (25251)  (663,177)
(2,250) (6,200) (76,473) (212,184)
1,250 - 42,485 -
(32,110) (15,570)  (1,091,351)  (532.,857)
9,650 - 327,983 -
(46) (92) (1,563) (3,148)
1,387 - 47,141 -
2 127 68 4,346
(22,117) (21,735) (751,710) (743,843)




Mermaid Maritime Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Statement of cash flows

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings from parent company
Repayment of borrowings from parent company
Payment of lease liabilities

Interest paid

Net cash from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents,
before effect of exchange rates

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and
cash equivalents

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

Non-cash transactions
Payables for purchase of property, plant and equipment
Lease agreements for purchase of equipment

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Separate financial statements

Year ended 31 December Year ended 31 December

2024 2023 2024 2023
(in thousand US Dollar) (in thousand Baht)
30,000 45,000 1,019,637 1,540,049
(3,500) - (118,958) -

(110) (132) (3,739) (4,517)
(1,910) (1,195) (65,511) (42,484)

24,480 43,673 831,429 1,493,048

1,615 2,516 54,468 86,028

(108) 49 (3,877) 1,719

1,507 2,565 50,591 87,747

2,670 105 91,376 3,629

4,177 2,670 141,967 91,376

= 2 = 68

402 304 13,663 10,404



Mermaid Maritime Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

Note
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Mermaid Maritime Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

These notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

The financial statements issued for Thai statutory and regulatory reporting purposes are prepared in the
Thai language. These English language financial statements have been prepared from the Thai language
statutory financial statements, and were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
27 February 2025.

1 General information

Mermaid Maritime Public Company Limited (the “Company™) is a public company limited which is
incorporated in Thailand and was listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.
The Company’s registered office at 26/28-29 Orakarn Building, 9% floor, Soi Chidlom, Ploenchit Road,
Kwaeng Lumpinee, Khet Pathumwan, Bangkok 10330, Thailand.

The parent company during the financial year is Thoresen Thai Agencies Public Company Limited,
which is incorporated in Thailand.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), provide a wide range of services to the offshore oil &
gas industries. The scope of services comprises sub-sea engineering and inspection by divers and
remotely operated vehicle (“ROV™) systems, ownership and operations of a fleet of offshore service
vessels and decommissioning service.

2 Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards (“TFRS”),
guidelines promulgated by the Federation of Accounting Professions. The accounting policies,
described in the notes, have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial
statements.

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency™).
The consolidated financial statements are stated in US Dollar, which is the Company’s functional
currency, and Thai Baht, which is the Company’s designated presentation currency and accordingly the
Company has prepared financial statements in both US Dollar and Thai Baht.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with TFRS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the Group’s accounting policies.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions that are described
in each note are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
prospectively.

As at 31 December 2024, the Company has negative working capital of US Dollar 66.1 million
which the Company’s borrowings included US Dollar 75 million of short-term borrowings and current
portion of long-term borrowing from parent company. The management have confirmed its intention to
continue the operations and the parent company has provided financial assistance to the Company which
they will not call upon the borrowings for the next 12 months unless the Company has sufficient funds
to meet the outstanding financial obligations to the parent company.
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Mermaid Maritime Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

TAS 12 Income Taxes — Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

The Group has adopted Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction
— Amendments to TAS 12 since 1 January 2024. The amendments narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exemption by excluding transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary
differences — e.g. leases and decommissioning liabilities. The Group shall recognise deferred tax assets
and liabilities that are relevant to leases and decommissioning liabilities since the beginning of
the earliest comparative period presented by adjusting cumulative effects in retained earnings or other
components of equity at that date. For all other transactions, the Group applies the amendments to
transactions that occur after the beginning of the earliest period presented. Previously, the Group
recognised deferred tax for leases arising from temporary differences on a net basis after the initial
recognition.

Following the amendments, the Group has recognised separately the deferred tax asset in relation to its
lease liabilities and the deferred tax liability in relation to its right-of-use assets. However, there was no
impact on the statement of financial position because the balances qualify for offsetting in accordance
with TAS 12. There was also no impact on the opening retained earnings as at 1 January 2023 as a result
of the change. The key impact for the Group relates to disclosure of the deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised (see Note 11).

TAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements — Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The Group has adopted Disclosure of Accounting Policies — Amendments to TAS 1 since 1 January
2024. The amendments require the disclosure of ‘material’ rather than ‘significant’, accounting policies.
The amendments also provide guidance on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting

policies.

Following the amendments, the Group has revisited the accounting policy information it has been
disclosing and made updates to the information disclosed in the notes.
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Mermaid Maritime Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

3

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that has direct or indirect control or joint control, or has significant
influence over the financial and managerial decision-making of the Group; a person or entity that is
under common control or under the same significant influence as the Group; or a person or entity over
which the Group has direct or indirect control or joint control or has significant influence over the

financial and managerial decision-making.

Relationships with parent of the Group, subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures are described in notes
1, 5 and 6. Other related parties which the group had significant transactions during the period with were

as follows:
Country of
incorporation/
Name of entities nationality Nature of relationship
PSM Land Company Limited Thailand One of the directors of parent company is a major
shareholder
Unique Mining Services PLC. Thailand An indirect subsidiary of parent company
Titan Tanker Co., Ltd Thailand A direct subsidiary of parent company
PT Seascape Surveys Indonesia Indonesia A subsidiary is a major shareholder, 10% or more
shareholding
Key management personnel Thai Persons having authority and responsibility
for planning, directing and controlling the
activities of the entity, directly or indirectly,
including any director (whether executive
or otherwise) of the Group
Consolidated financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2024 2023 2024 2023
(in thousand US Dollar) (in thousand Baht)
Parent of the Group
Cost of rendering of services 181 - 6,198 -
Administrative expenses 129 67 4,511 2,333
Finance costs 5,614 1,803 198,070 63,225
Joint ventures
Revenue from rendering of services 124,135 95,453 4,388,578 3,336,436
Other income 466 428 16,437 14,920
Costs of rendering of services 13,052 5,500 462,243 194,821
Key management personnel
Key management personnel compensation
Short-term employee benefits 767 775 27,069 26,962
Post-employment benefits 11 11 389 382
Total key management personnel
compensation 778 786 27,458 27,344
Other related parties
Revenue from rendering of services 5 - 178 -
Administrative expenses 89 72 3,143 2,516
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Year ended 31 December

Parent of the Group
Administrative expenses
Finance costs
Subsidiaries
Management fee income
Interest income

Other income

Joint ventures
Dividend income

Other income

Key management personnel

Key management personnel compensation

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits
Total key management personnel
compensation
Other related parties
Administrative expenses

At 31 December

Trade receivables
Joint ventures
Total

Other receivables
Associate

Joint ventures

Other related parties

Less allowance for expected credit loss
Net

Other non-current receivables
Joint venture
Total

Loans to
Joint venture
Other related party

Less allowance for expected credit loss
Net

Mermaid Maritime Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

Separate financial statements

2024 2023 2024 2023
(in thousand US Dollar) (in thousand Baht)
57 56 2,012 1,950
5,614 1,803 198,070 63,225
392 403 13,835 14,025
4,102 880 144,616 30,706
145 140 5,122 4,858
1,387 - 48277 -
424 345 14,942 12,028
767 775 27,069 26,962
11 11 389 382
778 786 27,458 27,344
89 72 3,143 2,517
Consolidated financial statements
2024 2023 2024 2023
(in thousand US Dollar) (in thousand Baht)
27,852 24,849 946,631 850,415
27,852 24,849 946,631 850,415
160 146 5,438 4,996
57 3,837 1,937 131,315
7,545 7,542 256,439 258,112
7,762 11,525 263,814 394,423
(7,542) (7,542) (256,337) (258,112)
220 3,983 7.477 136,311
16,000 16,000 543,806 547,573
16,000 16,000 543,806 547,573
4,250 3,250 144,449 111,226
18,350 18,350 623,678 627,998
22,600 21,600 768,127 739,224
(18,350) (18,350) (623,678) (627,998)
4,250 3,250 144,449 111,226
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At 31 December

Trade payable
Joint venture
Total

Other payables
Parent of the Group
Other related parties
Total

Borrowings from parent company
Short-term borrowings

Current portion of long-term borrowings
Long-term borrowings

Total

Consolidated financial statements

Mermaid Maritime Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

2024 2023 2024 2023
(in thousand US Dollar) (in thousand Baht)

1,483 1,199 50,404 41,034
1,483 1,199 50,404 41,034
4,669 766 158,690 26,215
619 617 21,039 21,116
5,288 1,383 179,729 47,331
11,500 11,500 390,861 393,568
63,500 17,500 2,158,232 598,908
5,500 25,000 186,933 855,583
80,500 54,000 2,736,026 1,848,059

Short-term and long-term borrowings for support working capital were granted by parent company and
were denominated in US Dollar, with interest at the rate 7% per annum. The repayment terms on call

for short-term borrowings and until March 2026 for long-term borrowings.

Significant agreement with related party

A direct subsidiary entered into Guarantee Agreements with related party to provide the corporate
guarantee to the financial institution for the term loan of agreed amount. Under the term of the
agreements, the related party agree to pay fees as stipulated in the agreement. The agreement expires
when the loan has been fully paid to the financial institution.

At 31 December

Other receivables
Subsidiaries
Associate

Joint venture

Less allowance for expected credit loss
Net

Other non-current receivables
Subsidiary

Less allowance for expected credit loss
Net

Separate financial statements

2024 2023 2024 2023
(in thousand US Dollar) (in thousand Baht)
5,212 4,654 177,146 159,275
160 147 5,438 5,031
57 69 1,937 2,361
5,429 4,870 184,521 166,667
(4,247) (4,247) (144,347 (145,346)
1,182 623 40,174 21,321
71,623 70,077 2,434,316 2,398,267
(24,916) (24,745) (846,843) (846,856)
46,707 45,332 1,587,473 1,551,411
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Mermaid Maritime Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

Separate financial statements

At 31 December 2024 2023 2024 2023
(in thousand US Dollar) (in thousand Baht)
Loans to
Subsidiaries 102,433 79,606 3,481,482 2,724,381
Joint venture 4,250 3,250 144,449 111,226
106,683 82,856 3,625,931 2,835,607
Less allowance for expected credit loss (29,049) (28,896) (987,314) (988,917)
Net 77,634 53,960 2,638,617 1,846,690

All loans to related parties are unsecured and have repayment terms at call.

Separate financial statements

At 31 December 2024 2023 2024 2023
(in thousand US Dollar) (in thousand Baht)
Other payable
Parent of the Group 4,419 744 150,193 25,462
Subsidiaries 11 11 374 376
Other related party 2 - 68 -
Total 4,432 755 150,635 25,838
Borrowings from parent company
Short-term borrowings 11,500 11,500 390,861 393,568
Current portion of long-term borrowings 63,500 17,500 2,158,232 598,908
Long-term borrowings 5,500 25,000 186,933 855,583
Total 80,500 54,000 2,736,026 1,848,059

4 Trade accounts receivable

Accounting policy

A trade accounts receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration. A trade accounts receivable is measured at transaction price less allowance for expected
credit loss. Bad debts are written off when the Group has no reasonable expectations of recovering.

The Group estimates lifetime expected credit losses (ECLs), using a provision matrix to find the ECLs
rates. This method groups the debtors based on shared credit risk characteristics and past due status,
taking into account historical credit loss data, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both current economic conditions and forward-looking general economic conditions at
the reporting date.
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Mermaid Maritime Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

Consolidated financial statements

At 31 December 2024 2023 2024 2023
(in thousand US Dollar) (in thousand Baht)
Within credit terms 48,365 36,088 1,643,824 1,235,050
Overdue:
Less than 3 months 29,678 21,969 1,008,693 751,852
3 - 6 months 857 1,530 29,128 52,362
6 - 12 months 2,022 1,839 68,724 62,937
Over 12 months 1,008 994 34,260 34,018
81,930 62,420 2,784,629 2,136,219
Less allowance for expected credit loss (1,335) (473) (45,374) (16,188)
Net 80,595 61,947 2,739,255 2,120,031
Contract assets - accrued income 63,471 23,852 2,157,246 816,294
Retention receivables 13,222 9,309 449,388 318,585
Total 157,288 95,108 5,345,889 3,254,910
Allowance for expected credit loss Consolidated financial statements
2024 2023 2024 2023
(in thousand US Dollar) (in thousand Baht)
At 1 January 473 605 16,188 20,910
Addition 1,063 534 36,317 18,767
Reversal (201) (643) (7,072) (22,459)
Write-off - 23) - (780)
Translation adjustments - - (59) (250)
At 31 December 1,335 473 45,374 16,188

5 Investments in associate and joint ventures

Accounting policy

Investments in associate and joint ventures in the separate financial statements are measured at cost less
allowance for impairment losses. Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which
the Company’s right to receive payment is established. If the Company disposes of part of its investment,
the deemed cost of the part sold is determined using the weighted average method. Gains and losses on
disposal of the investments are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group recognised investments in associate and joint ventures using the equity method in the
consolidated financial statements in which the equity method is applied until the date on which
significant influence or joint control ceases. They are initially recognised at cost, which includes
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the consolidated financial statements in which the
equity method is applied include the Group’s dividend income and share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of equity-accounted investees.
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Mermaid Maritime Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

Material movement Consolidated financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2024 2023 2024 2023
(in thousand US Dollar) (in thousand Baht)
Joint ventures
Acquired investment in Tan Cang Mermaid
Subsea Services Company limited. 750 - 25,491 -

New joint ventures agreements

On 21 June 2023, Mermaid Subsea Services (Thailand) Ltd. (“MSST”), a subsidiary of the Company
signed an agreement with Tan Cang Offshore Services Joint Stock Company, a company incorporation
in Vietnam, to establish a joint venture company in Vietnam. The joint venture company, namely Tan
Cang Mermaid Subsea Services Company Limited (“TC Mermaid™), were registered on 8 December
2023 with authorised share capital at VND 35,535,000,000. The shares were paid-up on 1 March 2024
amounting to US Dollar 750,000 or equals to VND 17,767,500,000. As a result, MSST owned 50% of
the total share in TC Mermaid.

On 25 September 2024, Mermaid Subsea Services (Thailand) Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, has
entered into a joint venture agreement with a company incorporated in Taiwan, ATE Energy
International Co., Ltd. The purpose of the joint venture was to develop the business in offshore wind
farm, subsea cable installation and offshore construction projects. At present, MSST has not yet made
any payment for the shares.

Material associate and joint ventures

The following table summarises the financial information of the material associate and joint ventures as
included in their own financial statements, adjusted for fair value adjustments at acquisition and
differences in accounting policies. The table also reconciles the summarised financial information to
the carrying amount of the Group’s interest in these companies.

Millennium 3 Ship Management and Operations

DMCCO
2024 2023 2024 2023
(in thousand US Dollar) (in thousand Baht)

Revenue 11,785 13,080 414,850 455,770
Profit from continuing operations 4,248 5,988 148,918 209,060
Total comprehensive income (100%) 4248 5,988 148,918 209,060
Group’s share of total comprehensive

income 2,124 2,994 74,459 104,530
Dividend income from joint ventures for

the year 2,996 3,746 109,978 133,549
Current assets 6,493 21,373 220,683 731,455
Non-current assets 28,927 28,798 983,168 985,563
Current liabilities (30,904) (43,911) (1,050,362) (1,502,779)
Non-current liabilities - - - -
Net assets (100%) 4,516 6,260 153,489 214,239
Group’s share of net assets (% hold) 2,258 3,130 76,745 107,120
Carrying amount of investment in

joint venture 2,258 3,130 76,745 107,120
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Mermaid Maritime Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

Zeaquest Co., Litd.
2024 2023 2024 2023
(in thousand US Dollar) (in thousand Baht)

Revenue 39,935 38,028 1,412,390 1,336,247
Profit (loss) from continuing operations (1,853) 1,595 (66,260) 57,372
Total comprehensive income (expense)

(100%) (1,853) 1,595 (66,260) 57,372
Group’s share of total comprehensive

income (expense) (927) 798 (33,130) 28,686
Current assets 14,142 22,162 480,657 758,457
Non-current assets 4,414 2,410 150,023 82,478
Current liabilities (17,193) (21,356) (584,354) (730,873)
Non-current liabilities - - - -
Net assets (100%) 1,363 3,216 46,326 110,062
Group’s share of net assets (% hold) 681 1,608 23,146 55,031
Elimination of unrealised profit on sale

equipment (189) (218) (6,424) (7,461)
Carrying amount of investment in

joint venture 492 1,390 16,722 47,570

PTGC Co., Ltd.
2024 2023 2024 2023
(in thousand US Dollar) (in thousand Baht)

Revenue - - - -
Loss from continuing operations (12) (37 (421) (1,269)
Total comprehensive expense (100%) (12) (37) (421) (1,269)
Group’s share of total comprehensive

expense (6) (18) (206) (622)
Current assets 12 11 408 376
Non-current assets 19,360 19,360 658,006 662,563
Current liabilities “4) %) (136) (171)
Non-current liabilities (150) (136) (5,098) (4,654)
Net assets (100%) 19,218 19,230 653,180 658,114
Group’s share of net assets (% hold) 9,417 9,423 320,064 322,486
Goodwill 12,939 12,939 439,769 442,815
Carrying amount of investment in

associate 22,356 22,362 759,833 765,301
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Mermaid Maritime Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

6

Investments in subsidiaries

Accounting policy

Investments in subsidiaries in the separate financial statements are measured at cost less allowance for
impairment losses. Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Company’s
right to receive payment is established. If the Company disposes of part of its investment, the deemed
cost of the part sold is determined using the weighted average method. Gains and losses on disposal of
the investments are recognised in profit or loss.

The consolidated financial statements relate to the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as
the “Group”) and the Group’s interests in associates. The financial statements of subsidiaries are
included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which control commences until the
date on which control ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income or
expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated on consolidation. Unrealised losses are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
acquisition, are translated at the exchange rates at the reporting date. The revenues and expenses of
foreign operations are translated to Thai Baht at the rates approximating the exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions.

Foreign exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income, except to the extent that
the translation difference is allocated to non-controlling interests. Foreign exchange differences are
accumulated in the translation reserve until disposal of the investment.

When a foreign operation is disposed of in its entirety or partially such that control is lost, the cumulative

amount in the translation reserve related to that foreign operation is reclassified to profit or loss as part
of the gain or loss on disposal.

34



S

Sst'e SSh'6 (899°v¢) (899°y¢) T CTI'bY 18301,
S¢S S - - s S¢S puesnoyl 007 YV puesnoyi 007 YvO 00°6% 00°6F @y "T"T' M SOIAISG BISQNG PIBULISIA

98¢ 98¢ - - 98¢ 98¢ puesnoyl oS YV'S pugsnoyl 00s YvS 00°56 00°56 ‘P 0D vIquIY Ipnes
SO0IAIRG BIS(NG PIRWLISIA

986°L 98¢, - - 985, 986°L 1 dsn 1dsn 00°001 00°001 “p11 (JeuoneUIUY)
SOOIAIOG BASANG PIRULIDIA

- - - - - - 001 asn 001 ASN 00°001 007001 SaIMUS A
[eUONBULISIUT PIBULIS]A

- - (00v°0D) (00t°02) 00¥°0C 00t°0T puesno puesnouy 00°001 00°001 PIT 9id
00¥°0T ASN 00¥°0T asn SOOIAIDS SIOYSHO PIBWIdIA
g 8 - - 8 8 puesnoyy 067 GH.L puesnoys 06 gH.L 00°001 007001 PIT 0D Woda(] PrewsON

YLT vLT - - vLT YLT vor { AV uopw | AV 00°001 00°001 LSHDNA 89914108
sen pue [10) Basqng prewio

o€l 0¢€1 - - 0€1 0€1 puesnoy) 001 JEID puesnoyl 001 44D 00°001 00°001 P (31N)
SIDIAIRG BASQNG PIRULIOIN

9101 910°1 - - 9101 9101 puesnoy 0SSy YA puesnoy) 05sy AW 00°S¥ 00°S¥ ) 'Pud ‘ups (esAe[en)
SOOIAIRG BISANG PIBULISIA
- - (89Z°+1) (89Z%1) 89T°v1 897°b1 001 DS 001 ADS 00°001 00'001 P ‘91d sAsaing adeoseag
SALDIPISGNS 24P UT
0LE'SS 0LE‘SS (Ler‘zIn Lerzin LOSLOT L9SL9T [v10],
8 8 - - 3 8 pussnoyl Sz gH.L puesnoy sz gH.L 00001 00°001 "PYT 0D SAINJUSA PIBULISIA

- - - - - - 1 dasn 1dsn 00°001 00°001 Py snyumey
QUWINLIBIA] PIBULIDIA
- - (PLOFT) (PLOPT) PLOPL PLOPL uolfIur o4 GHL uorru 014 gH.L 00°S6 00°66 P SUIILI( PrEULIDA

79€°6S 79¢€°6S (¢T1°86) (€21°86) S8PEST S8FEsT uof[iw O£1°C gHL uoyur 0g1°C dH.L 00°001 00001 ‘P71 (puepiey))
S90TAISG BASANG PIBULISIA
SALDIPISGHS 10241

()]0 SN puvsnoy u) (%)
£207 ¥20¢ £207 ¥20¢ €202 $20¢ €202 $20T £207 ¥20T

12U — 1500 1y uowyedury 180D rendeo dn - pieg 1sa1aiul diysioum(Q) KIBIpISQNS JO oweN

SJUdWRIE)S [erdURUYy ANeaedog

$707 1qUIdI( T€ POPUD 18K 3Y) 10
SHUIUIAIL)S [CIOURULJ I} 0) SAJON

saLIeIpISqnS )1 pue payrwry Auedwo)) S1qng SWHLIBIA] PIEULIIJA]



9¢

‘s3urpoy 2AnEIUasaIdal JO Junodoe Junje) Jaye 04001 S 1sesiur dnoin ()

¥8s°eTE 8S€1TE (€SP o8T°T) (T6T'8LYY) LEOOIS‘Y 0S9'66¥°1 [ejo,
788°1 698°1 - - 788°1 698°1 puesnoyl 60z JvO puesnoy 007 gv0 00°6% 0067 () T'TM SSOIAIDG BISONS PRRULISIA

012°¢1 611°¢l - - 01Z°€T 611°¢1 puesnot 00S UV'S puesnoy} oS MV'S 00°S6 00°$6 "PIT “0D vIqery Ipnes
muogaom wumn_:m Em:ﬁoz

819°65T TE8°LST - - 819°65T TES'LST 1 dsn 1 dasn 00°001 00°001 P11 (feuoyrusou))
moo;.ﬁm mumﬁsm _u_mE.GZ

€ € - - £ £ 001 ASN 001 SN 00001 00°001 SINJUS A
_mccﬁm:goﬁ: PIrewiA

- - (551°869) (g£5€°€69) $S1°869 £SE°E69 puesnoyy puesnoyy 00°001 00°001 Py19d
001°0Z AsN 00¥°07 ASN SOOIAIOG DIOYSHO PrRUWDIN
¥LT LT - - ¥LT LT puesnow 057 gL puesnoy 057 gH.L 00001 00001 "PIT 0D WOoda(] PrRUtISIA

LLE'6 £1€°6 - - LLE'6 £1€°6 uofIw | IV uoljIw | AV 00°001 00°001 LSADNA $a01A108
sen) pue {10 vasqngS prewtda

6v¥y 8IHY - - 6h¥°y 8THy puesnoyl 001 d€D puesnoyl 001 449D 00°001 00°001 1 (IN)
mooTCom NOmasw preuaAl

1LLYE TESPE - - TLLYE TESYE puesnoyl 05$y YAW puesnoyl 0s$y AN 00'St 00'S¥ (@ 'PUL "ups (1sAe[eN)
moo;.am BISANS Pretwon
- - (867°88%) (6£6°v8Y) 867°88¥ 6€6V8Y 001 DS 001 DS 00°001 00°001 P 01d sLoaing adeoseag
u.m.it.i.iﬁxh \UNL.#:Q
Y668l 0161881 (ZSL°6£8°C) (1pe’c1s’e) 969°PEL'S 1S7S69°S 1810,
VLT LT - - VLT LT puesnoy: 05z gH.L puesnoty) 057 gHL 00°001 00001 “PIT 0D SANUI A PIRULIOIA]

- - - - - - 1 dsn 1 dSN 00°001 00°001 P SnQLINBIN
QUIMLIBIA] PIBULIS]AL
- - (659°18%) (9€°8LY) 659°18% 9E 8Ly uolIw 01y 4HL uoyw O GH.L 00'$6 00°$6 P Bul(jL prewto

0L968°1 8€9°188°1 (£60°85£°€) (66 £€£°E) £9L°TST'S ££€9°912°S UOIIW 017 gH.L uolIw 0€1°7 gH.L 00001 00°001 Py (puepiey])
moo_?ﬁm mumn_:w ENE.BE
S2LADIPISqNS Jo241(

(ypg pupsnoy; uy) (%)
£20¢ $70T £202 ¥20¢ £202 $20T £207 ¥20T £20¢ $20T

1PU— 1800 1y Eozt_.mmﬁﬂ 180D _S_Qmo dn - pred uwo,ﬁuc_ QEm.ﬁGBO \CEEmQSm ,«o QWEeN

sjuawajes e ueuly Neavdog

P07 IQUIdN( J€ PIPUD 18K 3Y) 10
SHUDUID)B)S [RIDURUILJ 9T} 0) SIJON

SaLIRIpISqNS S} pue pajrur| Auedwo)) dqng dWNLIBCIA] PIBWLIIIA]



Mermaid Maritime Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

Material movement Separate financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2024 2023 2024 2023
(in thousand US Dollar) (in thousand Baht)

Increase capital in Mermaid Subsea
Services (Malaysia) Ltd. - 877 - 29,967

Increase in share capital of an indirect subsidiary

On 6 June 2023, the shareholders of Mermaid Subsea Services (Malaysia) Ltd. (“MSSM™), an indirect
subsidiary, approved the increase in share capital of MSSM by MYR 4.0 million, from MYR 0.6 million
to MYR 4.6 million. The addition shares were registered and fully paid-up on 6 June 2023.

Property, plant and equipment

Accounting policy
Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-
constructed assets includes capitalised borrowing costs and the costs of dismantling and removing the
items and restoring the site on which they are located. Purchased software that is integral to the
functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.

Differences between the proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment are recognised in profit or loss.

The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying
amount of the item when the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Group,
and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in profit or loss
as incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each component of
an asset and recognised in profit or loss. No depreciation is provided on freehold land or assets under
construction.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings and building improvement 10 and 20 years
Offshore support vessels 5t030 years
Motor launches 10 years
Dry-docking 2.5and5 years
Tools and equipment 31020 years
Office equipment 3to5 years
Motor vehicles 5to 10 years

The estimated useful lives of support vessels are based on their remaining useful lives at the acquisition
date. Depreciation is calculated based on a component approach on the cost of the vessels less an estimated
residual value.

Expenditures incurred during inspections, major repairs, or dry-docking are recognised in the carrying
amount of property, plant, and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied.
Dry-docking costs are considered a separate component of the vessels” cost that have a different pattern
of economic benefits and are therefore depreciated separately. Dry-docking expenses are amortised over
the period until the next scheduled dry-docking up to a maximum of 5 years.
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Mermaid Maritime Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted if appropriate.

Impairment losses

The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the assets’ recoverable amounts are
estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, unless it reverses a previous revaluation credited to
equity, in which case it is charged to equity. For an asset that does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss of asset recognised in prior periods is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount, but only to the extent that the asset’s carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, if
no impairment loss had been recognised.
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Mermaid Maritime Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

8

Interest-bearing liabilities

Consolidated financial statements

2024 2023 2024 2023
Note  (in thousand US Dollar) (in thousand Baht)

Short-term borrowings from

parent company - unsecured 3 11,500 11,500 390,861 393,568
Short-term borrowing from

financial institution - secured 1,559 3,064 52,987 104,860
Long-term borrowings from

parent company- unsecured 3 69,000 42,500 2,345,165 1,454,491
Long-term borrowings from

financial institutions - secured 20,225 24,196 687,405 828,067
Lease liabilities 12,741 21,564 433,040 737,991
Total interest-bearing liabilities 115,025 102,824 3,909,458 3,518,977

Separate financial statements
2024 2023 2024 2023
Note  (in thousand US Dollar) (in thousand Baht)

Short-term borrowings from

parent company - unsecured 3 11,500 11,500 390,861 393,568
Long-term borrowings from

parent company- unsecured 3 69,000 42,500 2,345,165 1,454,491
Lease liabilities 770 439 26,170 15,024
Total interest-bearing liabilities 81,270 54,439 2,762,196 1,863,083

The Group’s short-term borrowings from financial institution bear effective interest rate at 4.6% per
annum (2023: 5.0% per annum).

The Group’s long-term borrowings from financial institution bear effective interest rates ranging from
7.75% to 8.67% per annum (2023:ranging from 8.31%, to 9.33% per annum).

The Company’s short-term and long-term borrowings from parent company bears interest rate at 7.0%
per annum. (2023: 7.0% per annum,.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had unutilised credit facilities from financial institution totaling US
Dollar 13.1 million or equivalent to Baht 445.2 million.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group and the Company had unutilised credit facilities from parent
company totaling US Dollar 30 million or equivalent to Baht 1,027 million.

Restricted deposit at financial institutions

As at 31 December 2024, US Dollar 2.4 million or equivalent to Baht 81.6 million (2023: US Dollar
14.9 million or equivalent to Baht 510.6 million) restricted deposit at a financial institution was pledged
against long-term loans with a local financial institution. The restricted deposit must be maintained at a
minimum amount of the next two principal and interest.

As at 31 December 2024, US Dollar 0.9 million or equivalent to Baht 31.6 million (2023: US Dollar

0.1 million or equivalent to Baht 3.4 million) restricted deposit at financial institutions were deposited
by subsidiaries to secure the performance guarantee from the financial institution.
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Mermaid Maritime Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

The movement of long-term borrowings from financial institution were summarised as follows:

Consolidated financial statements

2024 2023 2024 2023
(in thousand US Dollar) (in thousand Baht)

At 1 January 24,196 32,484 828,067 1,122,725
Addition 17,396 5,920 591,254 202,602
Repayments during year (21,462) (14,272) (729,448) (488.435)
Amortisation to profit and loss

(front end fee) 95 64 3,354 2,229
Translation adjustments - - (5,822) (11,054)
At 31 December 20,225 24,196 687,405 828,067

Long-term borrowings for the purchase of support vessels were granted by commercial bank and were .
denominated in US Dollar, having a total outstanding balance of US Dollar 20.2 million as at
31 December 2024 (2023: US Dollar 24.2 million) with repayment terms until 2028. These borrowings
bear interest at the rate of USD-SOFR plus a certain margin, are secured by mortgages of support vessels
as mentioned in Note 7 and are guaranteed by the Company and parent company.

According to a condition of the borrowing agreements for all asset acquisitions, the Company and its
subsidiaries are not allowed to create any encumbrance on the assets used as collateral, except for
encumbrances created with the prior consent of the financial institutions and permitted liens.
The Company and certain subsidiaries must comply with other conditions and restrictions stated in
the term borrowing agreements.

9  Segment information and disaggregation of revenue

Accounting policy

(1) Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when a customer obtains control of the goods or services in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties, value added tax and is after deduction of any trade discounts
and volume rebates. Revenue in a foreign currency is translated into the functional currency at the
exchange rate at the date of transaction.

Revenue for rendering of services is recognised over time as the services are provided. The related
costs are recognised in profit or loss when they are incurred.

(2) Contract balances
Contract assets are recognised when the Group has recognised revenue before it has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. The contract assets are measured at the amount of
consideration that the Group is entitled to, less allowance for expected credit loss. The contract
assets are classified as trade receivables when the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration.

Contract liabilities including advances received from customers are the obligation to transfer goods
or services to the customer. The contract liabilities including advances received from customers are
recognised when the Group receives or has an unconditional right to receive non-refundable
consideration from the customer before the Group recognises the related revenue.
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Mermaid Maritime Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

@

Segment information

Segment results that are reported to the Group’s the chief operation decision maker include items
directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.

Management determined that the Group has two reportable segments, as described below, which are
the Group’s strategic divisions for different services, and are managed separately because they require
different marketing strategies. For each of the strategic divisions, the chief operating decision maker
(CODM) reviews internal management reports on at least a quarterly basis. The following summary
describes the operations in each of the Group’s reportable segments.

o Segment ] Subsea group
o Segment 2 Holding
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Mermaid Maritime Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

(b) Geographical information

©

10

Segments Subsea and Holding are managed on a worldwide basis but mainly operate and provide
services in Thailand, Qatar, United Arab Emirates, United Kingdom and Saudi Arabia.

In presenting information on the basic of geographical segments, assets are based on the geographical
location of the assets.

Assets
Geographical information 2024 2023 2024 2023
(in thousand US Dollar) (in thousand Baht)

Thailand 276,542 250,098 9,399,082 8,559,182
Saudi Arabia 109,811 68,989 3,732,245 2,361,031
United Arab Emirates 17,032 21,434 578,882 733,542
United Kingdom 6,102 1,856 207,394 63,518
Qatar 6,090 13,968 206,986 478,031
Singapore 141 160 4,792 5,476
Malaysia 29 64 986 2,190
Cayman 6 6 204 205
Mauritius 5 4 170 137
Total 415,758 356,579 14,130,741 12,203,312

Major customers
Revenues from the major customers of the Group’s segments Subsea represents approximately US
Dollar 308.5 million (2023: US Dollar 162.7 million) of the Group’s total revenues.

Expenses by nature

Consolidated financial statements

2024 2023 2024 2023
(in thousand US Dollar) (in thousand Baht)
Expenses included in costs of
rendering of services
Crew, staff and subcontractor
costs 138,931 94,899 4,893,713 3,309,909
Charter hire and equipment
rental 135,150 35,699 4,763,721 1,254,486
Vessel expenses and repair and
maintenance expenses 131,954 73,518 4,693,678 2,571,948
Mobilisation/demobilisation
expense 35,016 11,282 1,244,966 392,988
Depreciation 28,525 23,061 1,006,004 802,776
Recharge expenses related to
services provided 5,612 4277 197,287 149,143
Total 475,188 242,736 16,799,369 8,481,250
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Consolidated financial statements

2024 2023 2024 2023
(in thousand US Dollar) (in thousand Baht)

Expenses included in

administrative expense
Employee benefit expense 14,925 13,098 526,427 455,852
Professional fees 2,267 2,265 80,083 78,740
Depreciation and amortisation 2,071 1,992 73,062 69,388
Travelling expenses 1,212 760 42,730 26,451
Withholding tax not

recoverable 1,080 641 37,703 22,252
Others 3,826 2,238 133,595 77,978
Total 25,381 20,994 893,600 730,661

Separate financial statements
2024 2023 2024 2023
(in thousand US Dollar) (in thousand Baht)

Expenses included in

administrative expense
Employee benefit expense 2,467 2,588 86,841 90,227
Professional fees 644 563 22,665 19,589
Depreciation and amortisation 325 316 11,464 10,988
Others 775 569 27,177 19,814
Total 4,211 4,036 148,147 140,618
Income tax
Accounting policy

Income tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax, which is recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in
other comprehensive income.

The Group has determined that the global minimum top-up tax which it is required to pay under Pillar
Two legislation is an income tax in the scope of TAS 12. The Group has applied a temporary mandatory
relief from deferred tax accounting for the impacts for the top-up tax and accounts for it as a current tax
when it is incurred.

Current tax is recognised in respect of the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax
is not recognised for the temporary differences: the initial recognition of goodwill; the initial recognition
of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination or at the time of the transaction
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary and differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries and joint ventures to the extent that it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current deferred
tax assets and liabilities are offset in the separate financial statements.
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A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at
each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will
be realised.

Income tax recognised in profit Consolidated financial statements
or loss 2024 2023 2024 2023
(in thousand US Dollar) (in thousand Baht)
Current tax expense
Current year 2,442 1,040 85,875 37,215
Under (over) provided in prior years (144) 537 (5,082) 18,689
2,298 1,577 80,793 55,904
Deferred tax benefit
Movement in temporary
differences (55) (57) (1,983) (2,026)

Total 2,243 1,520 78,810 53,878
Reconciliation of effective tax Consolidated financial statements

rate 2024 2023 2024 2023

(in thousand US Dollar) (in thousand Baht)

Profit before income tax - accounting 16,415 11,184 570,117 399,768
Tax at the domestic rate of 20% 3,283 2,237 114,023 79,954
Effect of difference tax rate

in foreign jurisdictions “n (2,801) (1,447) (97,481
Income not subject to tax and

additional taxable expenses (4,459) (749) (157,374) (26,067)
Expenses not deductible for

tax purposes 1,569 785 56,869 26,197
Utilisation of previously

unrecognised tax losses (605) (1,354) (21,353) 47,122)

Tax losses and temporary differences

for which no deferred income tax

were recognised 2,356 2,750 83,151 95,706
Under (over) provided in prior years (144) 537 (5,082) 18,689
Remeasurement of gain on

exchange rate of US Dollar

financial statement 291 223 10,270 7,761
Remeasurement of loss on

exchange rate of Thai Baht

financial statement ()] (108) (247) (3,759
Total income tax expense 2,243 1,520 78,810 53,878
The average effective tax rate 14% 14% 14% 13%

The average effective tax rate is calculated including taxes due from overseas operations.
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Deferred tax
As at 31 December

Total
Set off of tax
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities)

Deferred tax
As at 31 December

Total
Set off of tax
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities)

Consolidated financial statements

Assets Liabilities
2024 2023 2024 2023
(in thousand US Dollar)
3,081 4,742 (2,372) (4,088)
(2,372) (4,087) 2,372 4,087
709 655 - 1)
Consolidated financial statements
Assets Liabilities
2024 2023 2024 2023
(in thousand Baht)
104,717 162,287 (80,619) (139,905)
(80,619) (139,871) 80,619 139,871
24,098 22,416 - (34)

Consolidated financial statements
(Charged) / Credited to

Other
At1 comprehensive At 31
Deferred tax January Profit or loss income December
(in thousand US Dollar)
2024
Deferred tax assets
Lease liability 4,297 (1,756) - 2,541
Provisions 69 65 - 134
Retirement benefits obligation 376 30 - 406
Total 4,742 (1,661) - 3,081
Deferred tax liabilities
Right-of-use assets (4,087) 1,761 - (2,326)
Property, plant and equipment ) (45) - (46)
Total (4,088) 1,716 - 2,372)
2023
Deferred tax assets
Lease liability 5,962 (1,665) - 4,297
Provisions 188 (119) - 69
Retirement benefits obligation 333 43 - 376
Total 6,483 (1,741) - 4,742
Deferred tax liabilities
Right-of-use assets (5,871) 1,784 - (4,087)
Property, plant and equipment (15) 14 - )
Total (5,886) 1,798 - (4,088)
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Consolidated financial statements

(Charged) / Credited to
Other
Atl Profit or comprehensive  Translation At31
Deferred tax January loss income adjustments December
(in thousand Baht)
2024
Deferred tax assets
Lease liability 147,058 (61,993) - 1,298 86,363
Provisions 2,361 2,210 - amn 4,554
Retirement benefits obligation 12,868 1,091 - (159) 13,800
Total 162,287 (58,692) - 1,122 104,717
Deferred tax liabilities
Right-of-use assets (139,871 62,205 - (1,390) (79,056)
Property, plant and equipment (G4 (1,530) - 1 (1,563)
Total (139,905) 60,675 - (1,389) (80,619)
2023
Deferred tax assets
Lease liability 206,061 (57,872) - (1,131) 147,058
Provisions 6,498 (4,242) - 105 2,361
Retirement benefits obligation 11,509 1,584 - (225) 12,868
Total 224,068 (60,530) - (1,251) 162,287
Deferred tax liabilities
Right-of-use assets (202,916) 62,065 - 980 (139,871)
Property, plant and equipment (519) 499 - (14) (34)
Total (203,435) 62,564 - 966 (139,905)
Unrecognised de_ferred tax assets Consolidated financial statements
2024 2023 2024 2023
(in thousand US Dollar) (in thousand Baht)

Tax losses 10,119 15,148 357,135 527,184
Impairment losses on property, plant

and equipment and related supplies

and spare parts 1,309 3,202 46,199 111,437
Allowance for expected credit loss 4,709 4,578 166,197 159,324
Impairment losses on goodwill 2,027 2,027 71,540 70,544
Retirement benefits obligation 491 53 17,329 1,845
Total 18,655 25,008 658,400 870,334
Unrecognised deferred tax assets Separate financial statements

2024 2023 2024 2023
(in thousand US Dollar) (in thousand Baht)

Impairment losses on investments in

subsidiaries 22,439 22,439 791,951 780,927
Allowance for expected credit loss 11,642 11,578 410,887 402,940
Tax losses 1,815 2,295 64,058 79,871
Total 35,896 36,312 1,266,896 1,263,738
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The tax losses will expire from 2024-2029. The deductible temporary differences do not expire under
current tax legislation. The Group has not recognised these as deferred tax assets because it is not
probable that the Group will have sufficient future taxable profit to utilise the benefits therefrom.

Minimum top-up tax

The Group has adopted International Tax Reform - Pillar Two Model Rules - Amendments to TAS 12
Income Taxes dated 28 December 2023. However, the Group is currently assessing the potential impact
on the Group's financial statements from adopting the accounting standards.

Financial instruments

Accounting policy

(1) Classification and measurement
Other financial assets and financial liabilities (except trade accounts receivables (see note 4) are
initially recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument,
and measured at fair value plus or minus, for an item not at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost; fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI); or FVTPL. Financial assets are not reclassified
subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group changes its business model for managing
financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified prospectively from the
reclassification date.

On initial recognition, financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Interest expense, foreign exchange gains and losses and any gain or loss
on derecognition are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets measured at amortised costs are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by expected credit losses. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses, expected credit loss and any gain or loss on derecognition are
recognised in profit or loss.

(2) Derecognition and offset
The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are
transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire. The Group also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified
and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial
liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value.

The difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the consideration received or paid is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set
off the amounts and the Group intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.
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)

Impairment of financial assets other than trade accounts receivables

The Group recognises allowances for expected credit losses (ECLs) on financial assets measured at
amortised cost, debt investments measured at FVOCI, and loan commitments issued which are not
measured at FVTPL.

The Group recognises ECLs equal to 12-month ECLs unless there has been a significant increase in
credit risk of the financial instrument since initial recognition or credit-impaired financial assets, in
which case the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses based on forward-looking and historical
experience. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls discounted by the
effective interest rate of the financial asset.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more
than 90 days past due, significant deterioration in credit rating, significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor and existing or forecast changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to meet
its obligation to the Group.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when:

- the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group takes action such as realising security (if any is held); or

- the financial asset is more than 180 days past due.

Write offs

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Group has no reasonable
expectations of recovering. Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously written off, are
recognised as a reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its
absence, the most advantageous market to which the Group has access at that date. The fair value of
a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as

far as possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the

inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly.

- Level 3:inputs for the asset or liability that are based on unobservable input.

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, then the Group
measures assets and asset positions at a bid price and liabilities and liability positions at an ask price.

57



Mermaid Maritime Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the
transaction price — i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Group determines
that the fair value on initial recognition differs from the transaction price, the financial instrument is
initially measured at fair value adjusted for the difference between the fair value on initial
recognition and the transaction price and the difference is recognised in profit or loss immediately.
However, for the fair value categorised as level 3, such difference is deferred and will be recognised
in profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument or until the fair value level is

transferred or the transaction is closed out.

(a) Carrying amounts and fair values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy, but does not include fair value information
for financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost if the carrying amount is a

reasonable approximation of fair value.

At 31 December

2024
Financial liabilities
Long-term borrowings
Total other financial liabilities

2023
Financial liabilities
Long-term borrowings
Total other financial liabilities

At 31 December

2024
Financial liabilities
Long-term borrowings
Total other financial liabilities

2023
Financial liabilities
Long-term borrowings
Total other financial liabilities

Consolidated financial statement
Carrying amount Fair value
Financial instruments
measured at
amortised cost Level 3
(in thousand US Dollar)

20,225 21,320
20,225

24,196 24,993
24,196

Consolidated financial statement

Carrying amount Fair value
Financial instruments
measured at
amortised cost Level 3
(in thousand Baht)

687,405 724,622
687,405
828,067 855,343
828,067
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The following tables present valuation technique of financial instruments measured at fair value in the
statements of financial position:

Inter-relationship between

Valuation Significant significant unobservable inputs
Type technique unobservable inputs and fair value measurement
Other financial Discounted cash Discount rate: (2024: The estimated fair value would
liabilities flows 4.0%-4.7% (2023: increase (decrease) if the adjusted
4.0%-4.8%) market multiple were higher
(lower).

Financial risk management policies

Risk management framework

The Group’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Group’s risk management framework. The board of directors has established the risk management
committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Group’s risk management policies.
The committee reports regularly to the board of directors on its activities.

The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the
Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and
the Group’s activities. The Group, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims
to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their
roles and obligations.

The Group audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group’s risk
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in
relation to the risks faced by the Group. The Group audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by
internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls
and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

(b.1) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s
receivables from customers.

(b.1.1) Trade accounts receivables
The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics
of each customer. However, management also considers the factors that may influence the
credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk associated with the industry and
country in which customers operate.

The risk management committee has established a credit policy under which each new

customer is analysed individually for creditworthiness before the Group’s commercial
terms and conditions are offered.
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(b.1.2)

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk from trade accounts receivables by establishing
a maximum payment period of 3 months. Outstanding trade receivables are regularly
monitored by the Group. An impairment analysis is performed by the Group at each
reporting date. The provision rates of expected credit loss are based on days past due for
individual trade receivables to reflect differences between economic conditions in the past,
current conditions and the Group’s view of economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables.

Information relevant to trade accounts receivables are disclosed in note 4.

Amount due from related parties, short-term loans to related parties, long-term loans and
other non-current receivable

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics
of each related party. However, management also considers the factors that may influence
the credit risk, including the default risk associated with the industry and country in which
they operate. The Group’s policy is to provide other accounts receivable and short-term
loans only if the related party was judged by management to have low credit risk at initial
recognition. Impairment on amount due from related parties, short-term loans, long-term loans,
and other non-current receivable have been measured on the 12-month expected loss basis
or the lifetime expected loss basis if the Group becomes aware of a significant increase in
the related party’s credit risk at the reporting date.

The following table presents the exposure to credit risk for amount due from related parties,
short-term loans, long-term loans and other non-current receivable at amortised cost. It
indicates whether assets measured at amortised cost were subject to a 12-month ECL or
lifetime ECL allowance and, in the latter case, whether they were credit-impaired.

Consolidated financial statements

Lifetime Lifetime
ECL-not ECL-
12-months credit- credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total
(in thousand US Dollar)
At 31 December 2024
Amount due from related
parties - 220 7,542 7,762
Short-term loans 4,250 - 18,350 22,600
Long-term loans - - 498 498
4,250 220 26,390 30,860
Less allowance for expected ‘
credit loss - - (26,390) (26,390)
Net 4,250 220 - 4,470
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Consolidated financial statements

Lifetime Lifetime
ECL-not ECL-
12-months credit- credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total
(in thousand US Dollar)
At 31 December 2023
Amount due from related
parties - 237 7,542 7,779
Short-term loans 3,250 - 18,350 21,600
Long-term loans - - 498 498
3,250 237 26,390 29,877
Less allowance for expected
credit loss - - (26,390) (26,390)
Net 3,250 237 - 3,487
Consolidated financial statements
Lifetime Lifetime
ECL-not ECL-
12-months credit- credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total
(in thousand Baht)
At 31 December 2024
Amount due from related
parties - 7,477 256,337 263,814
Short-term loans 144,449 - 623,678 768,127
Long-term loans - - 16,926 16,926
144,449 7,477 896,941 1,048,867

Less allowance for expected
credit loss - (896,941) (896,941)

Net 144,449 7,477 - 151,926

At 31 December 2023
Amount due from related
parties - 8,111 258,112 266,223
Short-term loans 111,226 - 627,998 739,224
Long-term loans - - 17,043 17,043
111,226 8,111 903,153 1,022,490

Less allowance for expected
credit loss (903,153) (903,153)

Net 111,226 8,111 - 119,337
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Consolidated financial statements

Amount due
Movement of allowance for from related Short-term Long-term
expected credit loss parties loans loans Total
(in thousand US Dollar)
Lifetime ECL credit
impaired
At 1 January 2023 7,542 18,350 498 26,390
At 31 December 2023 and
at 1 January 2024 7,542 18,350 498 26,390
At 31 December 2024 7,542 18,350 498 26,390
Consolidated financial statements
Amount due
Movement of allowance for from related Short-term Long-term
expected credit loss parties loans loans Total
(in thousand Baht)
Lifetime ECL credit
impaired
At 1 January 2023 260,670 634,220 - 17,212 912,102
Translation adjustment (2,558) (6,222) (169) (8,949)
At 31 December 2023 and
at 1 January 2024 258,112 627,998 17,043 903,153
Translation adjustment (1,775) (4,320) (117) (6,212)
At 31 December 2024 256,337 623,678 16,926 896,941
Separate financial statements
Lifetime Lifetime
ECL-not ECL-
12-months credit- credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total
(in thousand US Dollar)
At 31 December 2024
Amount due from related
parties - 397 5,032 5,429
Short-term loans 4,250 - 11,032 15,282
Other non-current receivable - - 71,623 71,623
Long-term loan - - 91,401 91,401
4,250 397 179,088 183,735
Less allowance for expected
credit loss - - (58,212) (58,212)
Net 4,250 397 120,876 125,523
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Separate financial statements

Lifetime Lifetime
ECL-not ECL-
12-months credit- credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total
(in thousand US Dollar)
At 31 December 2023
Amount due from related
parties - 394 4,476 4,870
Short-term loans 3,250 - 11,032 14,282
Other non-current receivable - - 70,077 70,077
Long-term loan - - 68,574 68,574
3,250 394 154,159 157,803
Less allowance for expected
credit loss - - (57,888) (57,888)
Net 3,250 394 96,271 99,915
Separate financial statements
Lifetime
Lifetime ECL- ECL-
12-months not credit- credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total
(in thousand Baht)
At 31 December 2024
Amount due from related
parties - 13,493 171,028 184,521
Short-term loans 144,449 - 374,954 519,403
Other non-current receivable - - 2,434,316 2,434,316
Long-term loan - - 3,106,528 3,106,528
144,449 13,493 6,086,826 6,244,768
Less allowance for expected
credit loss - - (1,978,504) (1,978,504)
Net 144,449 13,493 4,108,322 4,266,264
At 31 December 2023
Amount due from related
parties - 13,484 153,184 166,668
Short-term loans 111,226 - 377,551 488,777
Other non-current receivable - - 2,398,266 2,398,266
Long-term loan - - 2,346,829 2,346,829
111,226 13,484 5,275,830 5,400,540
Less allowance for expected
credit loss ' - - (1,981,118) (1,981,118)
Net 111,226 13,484 3,294,712 3,419,422
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Separate financial statements

Amount
due from Other non-
Movement of allowance for related Short-term current Long-term
expected credit loss parties loans receivable loans Total
(in thousand US Dollar)
Lifetime ECL credit
impaired
At 1 January 2023 2,809 6,127 26,635 21,852 57,423
Unrealised losses on
exchange - - 253 212 465
At 31 December 2023 and
at 1 January 2024 2,809 6,127 26,888 22,064 57,888
Unrealised losses on ’
exchange - - 171 153 324
At 31 December 2024 2,809 6,127 27,059 22,217 58,212
Separate financial statements
Amount
due from Other non-
Movement of allowance for related Short-term current Long-term
expected credit loss parties loans receivable loans Total
(in thousand Baht)
Lifetime ECL credit
impaired
At 1 January 2023 97,086 211,764 920,570 755,257 1,984,677
Unrealised losses on
exchange - - 9,020 7,558 16,578
Translation adjustment (953) (2,078) (9,394) (7,712) (20,137)
At 31 December 2023 and
at 1 January 2024 96,133 209,686 920,196 755,103 1,981,118
Unrealised losses on
exchange - - 5,814 5,202 11,016
Translation adjustment (661) (1,442) (6,331) (5,196) (13,630)
At 31 December 2024 95,472 208,244 919,679 755,109 1,978,504

(b.1.3) Cash and cash equivalent and derivatives
The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents and derivative
assets is limited which the Group considers to have low credit risk.

(b.1.4) Guarantees
The Group’s policy is to provide financial guarantees only for subsidiaries’ liabilities.
At 31 December 2024, the Group has issued a guarantee to certain banks in respect of credit
facilities granted to a subsidiary.

(b.2) Liquidity risk
The Group monitors its liquidity risk and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by management to finance the Group’s operations and to mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the

reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted and include contractual interest payments
and exclude the impact of netting agreements.
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Consolidated financial statements
Contractual cash flows

More than
1 year but
Carrying 1 year less than 5 More than
At 31 December amount or less years 5 years Total
(in thousand US Dollar)

2024
Non-derivative financial

liabilities
Trade and other

accounts payable 109,684 109,684 - - 109,684
Borrowings from

parent company 80,500 78,815 5,596 - 84,411
Borrowings from

financial institutions 21,784 12,505 11,811 - 24,316
Lease liabilities 12,741 10,572 2,658 297 13,527

224,709 211,576 20,065 297 231,938

2023
Non-derivative financial

liabilities
Trade and other

accounts payable 77,797 77,797 - - 77,797
Borrowings from

parent company 54,000 32,738 25,704 - 58,442
Borrowings from

financial institution 27,260 21,613 7,745 - 29,358
Lease liabilities 21,564 10,264 12,732 329 23,325

180,621 142,412 46,181 329 188,922

65



Mermaid Maritime Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2024

At 31 December

2024
Non-derivative financial
liabilities
Trade and other
accounts payable
Borrowings from
parent company
Borrowings from
financial institutions
Lease liabilities

2023
Non-derivative financial
liabilities
Trade and other
accounts payable
Borrowings from
parent company
Borrowings from
financial institution
Lease liabilities

Consolidated financial statements
Contractual cash flows

More than
1 year but
Carrying 1 year less than 5 More than
amount or less years 5 years Total
(in thousand Baht)
3,727,927 3,727,927 - - 3,727,927
2,736,026 2,678,757 190,196 - 2,868,953
740,392 425,019 401,431 - 826,450
433,040 359,320 90,340 10,094 459,754
7,637,385 7,191,023 681,967 10,094 7,883,084
2,662,469 2,662,469 - - 2,662,469
1,848,059 1,120,402 879,676 - 2,000,078
932,927 739,669 265,059 - 1,004,728
737,991 351,268 435,731 11,259 798,258
6,181,446 4,873,808 1,580,466 11,259 6,465,533
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Separate financial statements
Contractual cash flows

More than
1 year but
Carrying 1 year less than 5 More than
At 31 December amount or less years 5 years Total
(in thousand US Dollar)
2024
Non-derivative financial
liabilities
Other accounts payable 5,012 5,012 - - 5,012
Borrowings from parent
company 80,500 78,815 5,596 - 84,411
Lease liabilities 770 189 535 297 1,021
86,282 84,016 6,131 297 90,444
2023
Non-derivative financial
liabilities
Other accounts payable 1,620 1,620 - - 1,620
Borrowings from parent
company 54,000 32,738 25,704 - 58,442
Lease liabilities 439 72 251 329 652
56,059 34,430 25,955 329 60,714
Separate financial statements
Contractual cash flows
More than
1 year but
Carrying 1 year less than 5 More than
At 31 December amount or less years 5 years Total
(in thousand Baht)
2024
Non-derivative financial
liabilities
Other accounts payable 170,348 170,348 - - 170,348
Borrowings from
parent company 2,736,026 2,678,757 190,196 - 2,868,953
Lease liabilities 26,170 6,424 18,184 10,094 34,702
2,932,544 2,855,529 208,380 10,094 3,074,003
2023
Non-derivative financial
liabilities
Other accounts payable 55,442 55,442 - - 55,442
Borrowings from
parent company 1,848,059 1,120,402 879,676 - 2,000,078
Lease liabilities 15,024 2,465 8,590 11,259 22,314
1,918,525 1,178,309 888,266 11,259 2,077,834
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(b.3) Market risk
The Group is exposed to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument

will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk is as follows:

(b.3.1) Foreign currency risk
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk relating to purchases and sales which are
denominated in foreign currencies.

Consolidated financial statements

2024
(in thousand US Dollar)
Exposure to foreign currency
At 31 December THB AED GBP SAR EUR
Financial assets 4,545 118 3,337 72,499 -
Financial liabilities (21,254) 617) (4,791) (27,022) (2,301
Net exposure (16,709) (499) (1,454) 45477 (2,301)
Consolidated financial statements
2023
(in thousand US Dollar)

Exposure to foreign currency

At 31 December THB AED GBP SAR
Financial assets 854 87 1,800 38,568
Financial liabilities (11,351) (1,032) (1,065) (23,100)
Net exposure (10,497) (945) - 735 15,468

Separate financial statements
2024 2023
(in thousand US Dollar)

Exposure to foreign currency

At 31 December THB THB
Financial assets 69,308 46,597
Financial liabilities (558) (870)
Net exposure 68,750 45,727

Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of US Dollar against all other currencies
at the reporting date would have affected the measurement of financial instruments
denominated in a foreign currency. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in
particular interest rates, remain constant.
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13

Consolidated financial statements

Profit or loss Profit or loss
Impact to profit or loss Movement Strengthening Weakening Strengthening ~ Weakening
(%) (in thousand US Dollar) (in thousand Baht)
2024
Thai Baht 10 (1,857) 1,519 (63,099) 51,626
Great British Pound 10 (162) 132 (5,491) 4,492
Euro 10 (256) 209 (8,690) 7,110
2023
Thai Baht 10 (1,166) 954 (39,913) 32,656
Great British Pound 10 82 67 2,793 (2,285)
Separate financial statements
Profit or loss Profit or loss
Impact to profit or loss Movement Strengthening Weakening Strengthening ~ Weakening
(%) (in thousand US Dollar) (in thousand Baht)
2024
Thai Baht 10 7,639 (6,250) 259,630 (212,425)
2023
Thai Baht 10 5,081 (4,157) 173,789 (142,264)

(b.3.2) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that future movements in market interest rates will affect the
results of the Group’s operations and its cash flows because debt securities and loan interest
rates (see note 8) are mainly variable. So, the Group is primarily exposed to interest rate

risk.
Exposure to interest rate risk Consolidated financial statements
At 31 December 2024 2023 2024 2023
(in thousand US Dollar) (in thousand Baht)
Financial instruments with variable
interest rates
Long-term borrowings from financial
institution 20,225 24,196 687,405 828,067

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments.
A reasonable possible change of 1% in interest rates at the reporting date, an impact of
increase or decrease to profit or loss in totalling amount of US Dollar 0.20 million (2023:
US Dollar 0.24 million).

Capital management

The Board of Directors’ policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor

and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Board regularly monitors
the return on capital.

69



Mermaid Maritime Public Company Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

14 Guarantees

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group and the Company had outstanding guarantees as follows:

Consolidated financial statements
2024 2023
thousand thousand thousand thousand thousand thousand thousand thousand thousand thousand
Baht USD GBP QAR AED Baht USD GBP QAR AED
Letters of guarantee
issued by financial
institutions in the
normal course of
business 20,000 73,891 - 25 - 39,200 25,233 2,310 25 50

Guarantee for short-
term borrowings of

subsidiary to financial
institution - 1,559 - - - - 3,064 - - -

Guarantee for long-
term borrowings of
subsidiaries to financial
institution - 20,445 - - - - 24,261 - - -

Separate financial statements

2024 2023
thousand US thousand US
Dollar Dollar
Guarantee for short-term borrowings of subsidiary
to financial institution 1,559 3,064
Guarantee for long-term borrowings of subsidiaries
to financial institutions 20,449 24,261

15 Other events

The Group, through its other indirect subsidiary Seascape Surveys Pte. Ltd. (“SSS”), is a party to or
involved in a legal proceeding in Indonesia related to the shareholdings and management affairs of
PT Seascape Surveys Indonesia (“PTSSI”). A tort lawsuit was filed in the South Jakarta District Court
by SSS alleging that the defendants and co-defendants had engaged in unlawful acts related to the transfer
of ownership of 368 (46%) shares in PTSSI. Subsequent to the trial, SSS has filed an appeal and
submitted the memorandum of appeal.

16 Commitments with non-related parties

Consolidated financial statements

2024 2023 2024 2023
(in thousand US Dollar) (in thousand Baht)

Capital commitments
Purchasing of remotely operated

vehicles 11,488 - 390,453 -
Total 11,488 - 390,453 -
Other commitments
Short-term lease commitments 369 373 12,542 12,765
Long-term lease commitments 38 74 1,292 2,533
Total 407 447 13,834 15,298
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Events after the reporting period

At the Board of the Directors’ meeting of the Company held on 27 February 2025, the Board approved
the plan to undertake a non-renounceable and non-underwritten rights issue to raise gross proceeds of
approximately US Dollar 70.0 million. The Right issue of the Company is subject to certain conditions,
the approval of the SGX-ST, and the Company’s shareholders.

At the Board of the Directors’ meeting of the Company held on 27 February 2025, the Board approved
to propose the fully offset the Company’s deficit of US Dollar 267.6 million (Baht 9,859.0 million) as at
31 December 2024 with share premium to the shareholders of the Company. The offsetting of deficit
shall be proposed to the Company’s shareholders for their consideration and approval.

At the Board of the Directors’ meeting of Mermaid Subsea Services (Thailand) Ltd. (“MSST”) held on
27 February 2025, the Board approved to propose the fully offset MSST’s deficit of Baht 554.5 million
as at 31 December 2024 by reducing MSST’s share capital to the shareholders of MSST. The offsetting
of deficit shall be proposed to the shareholders of MSST for their consideration and approval.
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